
 

 

 

San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Thursday January 12th, 2023 

3 p.m. 

 
This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81222084344?pwd=OTBHSVkxRzVFU0VQdlQ2b28ybmVFUT09 

 

Meeting ID: 812 2208 4344 

Passcode: 455733 

One tap mobile 

+17193594580,,81222084344#,,,,*455733# US 

+12532158782,,81222084344#,,,,*455733# US (Tacoma) 

 

Item 
No. 

Presenter Item Type Topic 
Packet 
Page 

Estimated 
Time 

1. - - Public Comment - 5 

2. Board 
Meeting 

Resolution 

Resolution 2023-1, Part 1a, 
regarding the Review and 
Approval of the January 12th, 
2023 Agenda and Consent 
Items 
 
Resolution 2023-1, Part 1b, 
regarding the Review and 
Approval of December 8th, 
2022 Meeting Minutes 

6 5 

3. Averill Action 
Resolution 2023-2: Extension 
of lease with Proset 
Construction 

7 5 

4. Averill Action 

Resolution 2023-3: Entering 
into a Cooperative Purchase 
Agreement with the State of 
Washington Department of 
Transportation for the 
purchase of transit vehicles 

21 10 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81222084344?pwd%3DOTBHSVkxRzVFU0VQdlQ2b28ybmVFUT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1672073037625573&usg=AOvVaw13LadSLw3ofn3Lcxfv5Pin


 

 

5. Distefano Report 
January 2023 Operations 
Update 

29 10 

6. Averill Report Executive Directors Report 50 10 

7. All Report 
Round Table Updates and 
Reports 

- 5 

 



5304 FTA program funding for multimodal transportation planning (jointly administered with FHWA) in 

metropolitan areas and States

5311 FTA program funding for rural and small Urban Areas (Non‐Urbanized Areas)

5339 FTA program funding for buses and bus facilities

AAC SMART Administrative Advisory Committee

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

AIS Agenda Item Summary

CAAA Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 (federal)

CAC SMART Community Advisory Committee

CDOT Colorado Department of Transportation

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (a FHWA funding program)

DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

DOT (United States) Department of Transportation

DTR CDOT Division of Transit & Rail

FAST ACT Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (federal legislation, December 2015

FASTER Funding Advancements for Surface Transportation and Economic Recovery (Colorado’s S.B. 09‐108)

FHWA Federal Highway Administration

FTA Federal Transit Administration

FY Fiscal Year (October – September for federal funds; July to June for state

funds; January to December for local funds)

FFY Federal Fiscal Year

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle

HUTF Highway Users Tax Fund (the State’s primary funding source for highways)

IGA Inter‐Governmental Agreement

ITS Intelligent Transportation Systems

LRP or LRTP Long Range Plan or Long Range Transportation Plan

MOA Memorandum of Agreement

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NAA Non‐Attainment Area (for certain air pollutants)

NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act

PPP (also P3) Public Private Partnership

R3 or R5 Region 3  or Region 5 of the Colorado Department of Transportation

RPP Regional Priority Program (a funding program of the Colorado Transportation Commission)

RSH Revenue Service Hour 

RSM Revenue Service Mile

RTP Regional Transportation Plan

SOV Single Occupant Vehicle

STAC State Transportation Advisory Committee

STIP Statewide Transportation Improvement Program

TA (previously TAP) Transportation Alternatives program (a FHWA funding program)

TC Transportation Commission of Colorado

TIP Transportation Improvement Program

Title VI U.S. Civil Rights Act of 1964, prohibiting discrimination in connection with programs and activities receiving 

federal financial assistance

TPR Transportation Planning Region (state‐designated)

TRAC Transit & Rail Advisory Committee (for CDOT)

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled

GLOSSARY

Revised 10/26/18

1



San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Thursday January 12th, 2023 

3 p.m. 

This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81222084344?pwd=OTBHSVkxRzVFU0VQdlQ2b28ybmVFUT09 

Meeting ID: 812 2208 4344 

Passcode: 455733 

One tap mobile 

+17193594580,,81222084344#,,,,*455733# US

+12532158782,,81222084344#,,,,*455733# US (Tacoma)

Item 
No. 

Presenter Item Type Topic 

1. - - Public Comment 

2. Board 
Meeting 

Resolution 

Resolution 2023-1, Part 1a, 
regarding the Review and 
Approval of the January 12th, 
2023 Agenda and Consent 
Items 

Resolution 2023-1, Part 1b, 
regarding the Review and 
Approval of December 8th, 
2022 Meeting Minutes 

3. Averill Action 
Resolution 2023-2: Extension 
of lease with Proset 
Construction 

4. Averill Action 

Resolution 2023-3: Entering 
into a Cooperative Purchase 
Agreement with the State of 
Washington Department of 
Transportation for the 
purchase of transit vehicles 

2

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81222084344?pwd%3DOTBHSVkxRzVFU0VQdlQ2b28ybmVFUT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1672073037625573&usg=AOvVaw13LadSLw3ofn3Lcxfv5Pin


5. Distefano Report 
December 2022 Operations 
Update 

6. Averill Report Executive Directors Report 

7. All Report 
Round Table Updates and 
Reports 

3



San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Board of Directors Meeting December 8th, 2022 Regular Meeting 

Virtual meeting minutes 

Member Directors Present: San Miguel County – Kris Holstrom and Lance Waring. Town of Telluride – 
Adrienne  Christy,  Meehan  Fee,  Delanie  Young.  Town  of  Mountain  Village  –  Patrick  Berry,  Harvey 
Mogenson. 

Staff Present: David Averill and Kari Distefano (SMART). Kelly Kronenberg (Telluride Express). 

The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 

Item 1: Public Comment 

No public comment was offered. 

Item 2: Resolution 2022‐19 Part 1a,  regarding  the Review and Approval of  the December 8th, 2022 

Agenda and Consent Items and Part 1b, regarding the Review and Approval of November 10th, 2022 

Meeting Minutes 

Lance Waring moved to adopt Resolution 2022‐19, parts 1a and 1b with an amendment indicating for the 
record that Joe Dillsworth was present at the December 8th, 2022 meeting. 
Patrick Berry seconded the motion. 

A unanimous vote approved the motion. 

Item 3: Resolution 2022‐20 Approving the Fiscal Year 2023 Mill Levy Certifications 

Averill gave background on the item explaining the necessity of certifying the mill levy’s for the fiscal year. 
There were no concerns or questions expressed by the Board. 

Patrick Berry moved to adopt Resolution 2022‐20 
Joe Dillsworth seconded the motion. 

A unanimous vote approved the motion. 

Item  4: Resolution  2022‐21  regarding  the Approval of  the  Fiscal  Year  2023 Budget, Capital  Plan  and 
Spending Appropriations 

Averill recapped the previous discussions regarding the development of the 2023 budget and capital plan. 
He then presented the recommended budget and capital plan for the Boards consideration. There were 
no questions or concerns expressed by the Board.  

Patrick Berry moved to adopt Resolution 2022‐21 
Lance Waring seconded the motion. 

4



A unanimous vote approved the motion. 

Item 5: Resolution 2022‐22 setting 2023 Meeting Board Meeting Dates 

Averill presented a list of recommended meeting dates for 2023. In keeping with tradition, this list sets 
meeting dates as the 2nd Thursday of the month at 3 p.m. No questions or concerns were expressed by 
the Board. 

Lance Waring moved to adopt Resolution 2022‐22 
Harvey Mogensen seconded the motion. 

A unanimous vote approved the motion. 

Item 6: Resolution 2022‐23 election of Board Officers for 2023/2024 

Averill presented background on how  the Board Officer positions have  rotated amongst  the member 
jurisdictions  over  the  years.  The  Board  opted  to  split  the  previously  combined  Secretary/Treasurer 
position  so  that each  jurisdiction would have  an officer position moving  forward.   As  a  result of  the 
background and following discussion, Board member Waring nominated Dillsworth as Chair, Berry as Vice‐
Chair,  Fee  as  Board  Treasurer  and  himself  as  Board  Secretary.  No  objections  were  noted  and  the 
nominations went to vote.  

Lance Waring moved to adopt Resolution 2022‐23 
Adrienne Christy seconded the motion. 

A unanimous vote approved the motion. 

Item 7: November 2022 Operations Update 

Distefano presented the October 2022 Operations Update.  

Item 8: Round table updates and reports 

A brief update about the Chondola was offered by Berry.  

The meeting was adjourned at 9:40 a.m. 

5



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION EVIDENCING ACTIONS TAKEN AT ITS JANUARY 12TH, 2023 REGULAR MEETING 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-1 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (“SMART”) was approved by the 

registered electors of the Town of Telluride, Town of Mountain Village, and that portion of the SMART 

combination that are within that part of the SMART boundaries located within unincorporated San Miguel 

County, pursuant to the Colorado Regional Transportation Authority Law, C.R.S. Title 43, Article 4, Part 6, at the 

general election held on November 8, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, SMART is governed by the Colorado Regional Transportation Authority Law and SMART 

Intergovernmental Agreement (“SMART IGA”) conditionally approved by each of the governing bodies of the 

Town of Telluride, Town of Mountain Village and San Miguel County pending approval by the registered electors 

at the November 8, 2016 general election; and 

WHEREAS, the Board held a regular meeting on January 12th, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3.09 of the SMART IGA requires all actions of the Board to be taken by written 

resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to take action on certain items set forth below in accordance with the 

SMART IGA. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AS FOLLOWS: 

1. At its January 12th, 2023 regular meeting the Board took action on the following:

a. Approval of the January 12th, 2023 meeting agenda (Exhibit A)

b. Approval of the Board meeting minutes for the December 8th, 2022 regular meeting (Exhibit

B)

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AT A REGULAR PUBLIC MEETING THIS JANUARY 12TH, 2023. 

______________________________________ 

Joe Dillsworth, Board Chair 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

David Averill, Executive Director 

6

Click here to return to Agenda



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY (AIS) 

San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Meeting Date Agenda Item Submitted By 

January 12th, 2023 3 D. Averill

Objective/Requested Action 

Action is requested of the Board to extend an existing lease with Proset Construction for 
13 Society Dr. 

    Report 
    Work Session 
   Discussion 

 X Action 

Key Points 

Proset Construction has requested an extension to their existing lease (Exhibit A) to June 30th, 2024. The proposed 
Amendment extending the lease is included as Exhibit B. CDOT has approved the extension of this lease with the 
Tenant. 

Committee Discussion 

NA 

Supporting Information 

NA 

Fiscal Impact 

These actions will have a net positive fiscal impact for SMART. 

Advantages 

Revenue generated from rent on this property helps to offset ongoing maintenance and capital repairs of the facility. 

Disadvantages 

None noted. 

Analysis/Recommendation(s) 

Staff recommends the extension of the lease for 135 Society Dr. with Proset Construction. 

Attachments 

Exhibit A: Original Lease with Proset Construction 
Exhibit B: Amendment to extend original lease with Proset Construction 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

This AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into effective 
_________ 2023 by and among the SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION,  (“SMART”) and 
Colorado Department of Transportation acting through SMART(collectively "Landlord") and PROSET 
CONSTRUCTION ("Tenant"). 

RECITALS 

A. Land Lord executed a Lease with Tenant dated July 1, 2022, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit "A" (the "Lease").

B. Landlord and Tenant desire to further amend the Lease as hereinafter provided.

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows: 

I. Term: The Lease shall be extended to June 30th, 2024. Landlord also agrees that Tenant may terminate
the Lease without penalty upon Sixty (60) days advance written notice if Tenant secures a new location to relocate
its business.

2. Effect of Amendment: Except as expressly modified herein, the Lease is unmodified, is hereby ratified and
affirmed, will remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and will apply to the Premises. If there is
any inconsistency between the terms of the Lease and the terns of this Amendment, provisions of this Amendment
will govern and control the rights and obligations of Landlord and Tenant.

3. Counterparts:  This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be
deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts taken together will constitute one and the same instrument.
This Amendment may be executed and delivered by one party to the other by facsimile or e‐mail (PDF)
transmission, and counterparts executed and delivered in such manner will be fully binding and enforceable to the
same effect as if an original had been executed and delivered instead.
In all other respects, the Lease Agreement remains in full force and effect.

"LANDLORD" SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 

By: _____________________________ 
Printed Name: David Averill 
Title: Executive Director 

"TENANT" PROSET CONSTRUCTION
By: _____________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 

19

RickBuckendorf
Text Box
Richard Buckendorf

RickBuckendorf
Text Box
President



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION (SMART) 

APPROVING A LEASE AMENDMENT WITH PROSET CONSTRUCTION FOR 135 SOCIETY DRIVE 

RESOLUTION 2023-2 

WHEREAS, the San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (“SMART”) purchased 135 
Society Drive in Lawson Hill in October of 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors entered into a lease agreement with Proset Construction for 
office space at 135 Society Dr. in Lawson Hill, a copy of which is attached hereto, as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHERAS, the Board of Directors desires to execute an Amendment to extend the term of the 
lease with Proset Construction to June 30th, 2024, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of SMART as follows: 

THAT, the Board of Directors hereby approves the lease Amendment with Proset Construction 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; and 

THAT, the Board of Directors hereby authorizes and directs the SMART Executive Director to 
execute Exhibit “B” on behalf of SMART and take all actions necessary and appropriate to 
effectuate this Resolution. 

INTRODUCED, READ AND PASSED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Authority for Regional 
Transportation, Telluride, Colorado, at its regular meeting held on January 12th, 2023. 

SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION 

__________________________________________ 
Joe Dillsworth 
Chairman, Board of Directors 

Date: _____________________________ 

WITNESS my hand this ______ day of ___________________, 2023. 

__________________________________________ 
David Averill, SMART Executive Director 

20

Click here to return to Agenda



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY (AIS) 

San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Meeting Date Agenda Item Submitted By 

January 12th, 2023 4 Averill 

Objective/Requested Action 

Action is requested of the Board to approve entering into a Cooperative Agreement with 
the Washington State Department of Transportation (WADOT) in order to utilize the 
WADOT fixed price agreement for the purchase of large heavy duty transit vehicles. 

 Report 
 Work Session 
 Discussion 

 X  Action 

Key Points 

In the fall of 2022, SMART received notice that it was awarded a Federal Transit Administration 5339 discretionary 
grant that includes funding to purchase up to 5 large heavy duty transit buses. Procurement of this type of vehicle is 
complex and typically includes developing technical specifications for the vehicles, getting CDOT concurrence on the 
bid documents and process, running an RFP selection process, securing CDOT approval of the selected 
vendor/manufacturer, then negotiating final pricing, production slots, and delivery timelines with the manufacturer. 
Furthermore, for a small agency such as SMART with limited numbers of vehicles needed (in our case up to five) 
running an RFP process on our own often doesn’t result in very good pricing because of the low quantity being 
ordered relative to what larger agencies procure for their fleet needs. For instance, the New York MTA had a recent 
bid out for 500 of the same type of vehicle we are looking to procure. 

A popular, efficient, and cost-effective procurement option for smaller agencies such as SMART is to utilize an existing 
fixed price agreement to purchase transit vehicles. For instance, SMART utilized existing CDOT price agreements for 
vans and small to mid-sized buses for its last several vehicle purchases. Unfortunately, CDOT does not currently have 
a price agreement in place for large heavy duty transit buses that SMART has been awarded funding for and has a 
need to procure in a timely fashion.  

To move forward quickly on the procurement of these much-needed vehicles, staff is proposing to enter into a 
Cooperative Agreement with the Washington State Department of Transportation (WADOT) to utilize its existing fixed 
price agreement for large transit vehicles, which is open to other Federal grant recipients such as SMART. 

The WADOT agreement has many suitable options available from different manufacturers that will meet SMARTs 
specific needs, has previously been approved by CDOT for use by its sub-recipients, and perhaps most importantly has 
excellent pricing that would be hard for SMART to lock in if we were running our own procurement process, mainly 
because of the relatively low quantity of vehicles we are procuring. 

Committee Discussion 

NA 

Supporting Information 

NA 

Fiscal Impact 

We are still waiting for final quotes from our preferred manufacturer but each vehicle will be in the neighborhood of 
$650k – 80% of which will be covered by the 5339 grant. 

Advantages 

21



Utilizing the WADOT agreement has many advantages, including optimum pricing, a quicker procurement process, 
pre-approval of the procurement process by CDOT, and the ability to do business with a qualified, reputable vendor. 

Disadvantages 

None noted. 

Analysis/Recommendation(s) 

Staff recommends that SMART enter into the Cooperative Agreement with WADOT to procure these heavy duty 
vehicles. 

Attachments 

Attachment A: Cooperative Agreement with WADOT 

22



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 

APPROVING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

FOR THE PURCHASE OF HEAVY DUTY TRANSIT VEHICLES 

RESOLUTION 2023‐3 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, SMART has a need for heavy duty transit vehicles to maintain a state of good repair and support 
its growing operations; 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Transportation (WADOT) maintains fixed price agreements 
for heavy duty transit vehicles that qualified transit agencies are eligible to purchase off of; 

WHEREAS, purchasing off of a fixed price agreement is an efficient and cost‐effective method of 
procurement that satisfies all Federal and State procurement requirements;  

WHEREAS, the WADOT fixed price agreement has a selection of suitable heavy duty transit vehicles and 
associated options that will meet SMARTs needs ; 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) does not currently have fixed price 
agreements equivalent to what is available through the WADOT fixed price agreement;  

WHEREAS, CDOT supports and encourages its grant partners to utilize other fixed price agreements for 
products that CDOT may not have in place; 

WHEREAS, the pricing in the WADOT fixed price agreement that is available to SMART on these vehicles 
is reasonable and within the spending authorized in the SMART FY23 capital plan; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION: 

1. THAT, for the purpose of purchasing heavy duty transit vehicles off of the WADOT fixed price agreement

the Cooperative Agreement between SMART and WADOT that is attached to this resolution as Exhibit A
is approved and shall be executed by the Board Chair.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION AT A REGULAR PUBLIC MEETING THIS 12TH DAY OF JANUARY 2023. 

______________________________________ 

Joe Dillsworth, Board Chair 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

David Averill, Executive Director 

23



WASHINGTON STATE TRANSIT BUSES COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT PAGE 1 
(Rev 2021-10-01) 

COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

FOR

TRANSIT BUSES 

MASTER CONTRACT NO. 06719 

This Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for Transit Buses (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 
between the State of Washington acting by and through the Department of Enterprise Services, a 
Washington State governmental agency (“Enterprise Services”) and Gunnison Valley Transportation 
Authority, a special taxing district under the State of Colorado (“Authorized Purchasing Entity”) and is 
dated and effective as of March 24, 2022. 

R E C I T A L S 

A. Pursuant to Legislative authorization, Enterprise Services, on behalf of the State of
Washington, is authorized to develop, solicit, and establish master contracts for goods
and/or services to support Washington state agencies.  See RCW 39.26.050(1).  The
Washington State Legislature also has authorized Enterprise Services to make these
master contracts available, pursuant to an agreement in which Enterprise Services
ensures full cost recovery, to other local or federal government agencies or entities,
public benefit nonprofit organizations, and any tribes located in the State of Washington.
See RCW 39.26.050(1) & (2).

B. In addition, Enterprise Services is authorized “to participate in, sponsor, conduct, or
administer a cooperative purchasing agreement.”  See RCW 39.26.060(1).

C. Master Contract Cooperative Purchasing Agreements provide an opportunity for
Enterprise Services to meet the needs of its customers and, by designing and developing
the Competitive Solicitation and resulting Master Contract to include the opportunity for
cooperative utilization by Authorized Purchasing Entities through a Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement, to meet the needs of similarly situated purchasing entities who
collectively enable an innovative, cost-effective, and efficient procurement solution for
awarded contractors and eligible purchasers.

D. The above-referenced Master Contract was competitively bid, evaluated, and awarded
pursuant to the State of Washington’s procurement laws for goods/services.  See
RCW 39.26.  The procurement and resulting Master Contracts were designed to create
competition and awarded contractors for a variety of Transit Buses (contract categories).

E. The above-referenced Master Contract was designed to and meets Federal Transit
Administration (“FTA”) requirements for a State Cooperative Purchasing Contract under
the FAST Act Sec. 3019.  See Pub.L. 114-94.

F. There are no pending protests or lawsuits pertaining to the procurement or award of the
Master Contract.

24



WASHINGTON STATE TRANSIT BUSES COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT PAGE 2 
(Rev 2021-10-01) 

G. Enterprise Services maintains procurement and contract records pertaining to the Master
Contract including the Competitive Solicitation, Bid Tab, Bidder Profiles, and resulting
Master Contracts.  In addition, Enterprise Services Transit Buses website identifies the
various awarded contractors.

H. The purpose of this Agreement is to enable the Authorized Purchasing Entity to utilize the
above referenced Master Contract consistent with the terms thereof and the terms and
conditions set forth herein.

A G R E E M E N T 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions set forth herein, the 
parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

1. TERM.  Upon execution, this Cooperative Purchasing Agreement shall continue for the term of the
applicable Master Contract, as amended or extended; Provided, however, that, upon written notice
to Enterprise Services, Purchasing Entity may terminate its participation in this Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement and its ability to utilize the above-referenced Master Contract.

2. AUTHORIZATION TO UTILIZE THE MASTER CONTRACT.  Consistent with the terms and conditions of the Master
Contract and Purchasing Entity’s applicable procurement law, Purchasing Entity is authorized to utilize
the above-referenced Master Contract as a procurement solution.  The State of Washington makes
no representation or warranty regarding Purchasing Entity’s governing law or whether the Master
Contract is an appropriate procurement solution for Purchasing Entity.

3. CONTRACTOR CONSENT.  Consistent with its applicable procurement authority, Purchasing Entity may
propose and negotiate jurisdiction-specific terms with the applicable awarded Contractor to meet
Purchasing Entity’s needs; Provided, however, that any such jurisdiction-specific modifications are
subject to agreement with the applicable awarded Contractor.  Under no circumstances, however,
will Purchasing Entity’s jurisdiction-specific modifications change or modify the Master Contract
obligations between the State of Washington and the applicable awarded Contractor.  Upon
execution of Purchasing Entity’s agreement with the applicable awarded Contractor, Purchasing Entity
shall provide a copy of the same to Enterprise Services prior to making any purchases under the
Master Contract.

4. VENDOR MANAGEMENT FEE.  The Vendor Management Fee set forth in the Master Contract shall be paid
by the applicable Contractor to Enterprise Services on all applicable purchases.  In no event shall
Purchasing Entity modify, waive, or terminate the Vendor Management Fee.  Any such modification,
waiver, or termination of the Vendor Management Fee shall be deemed a material breach of this
Agreement and shall terminate the Agreement; and, in the event Purchasing Entity attempts to
modify, waive, or terminate the Vendor Management Fee, Purchasing Entity shall, by such act, agree
to notify Enterprise Services of the same and to pay to Enterprise Services, within thirty (30) days, the
equivalent of the otherwise applicable Vendor Management Fee.

5. ACCURATE PURCHASES.  Purchasing Entity shall make orders within the scope of the Master Contract.
Any purchases outside of the scope of the Master Contract shall constitute a breach of this
Agreement.  IN the event of such breach, Enterprise Services may terminate this Agreement, including
the authorization for any purchases by Purchasing Entity under the Master Contract.  Purchasing
Entity represents and warrants that it shall use reasonable, good faith efforts to assist the Contractor

25



WASHINGTON STATE TRANSIT BUSES COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT PAGE 3 
(Rev 2021-10-01) 

in obtaining and reporting to Enterprise Services accurate purchases under the Master Contract for 
purposes of the applicable Vendor Management Fee. 

6. AGREEMENT MANAGEMENT; NOTICES; PURCHASING ENTITY CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.

(a) AGREEMENT MANAGEMENT; NOTICES.  The parties hereby designate the following contacts as the
respective single points of contact for purposes of this Agreement.  The parties may change
such individuals by written notice as set forth below.  Any notices required or desired shall be
in writing and sent by U.S. mail, postage prepaid, or sent via email, and shall be sent to the
respective addressee at the respective address or email address set forth below or to such
other address or email address as the parties may specify in writing:

Enterprise Services San Miguel Authority for Regional 
Transportation 

Attn:  Bus Purchases 
Department of Enterprise Services 
PO Box 41411 
Olympia, WA  98504-1411 

Email:  buspurchases@des.wa.gov 

Attn:  David Averill 
Executive Director 
San Miguel Authority for Regional 
Transportation 
PO Box 3140 
Telluride, CO 81435 

Tel: (970) 988-1219 

Email: david.averill@smarttelluride.com 

Notices shall be deemed effective upon the earlier of receipt, if mailed, or, if emailed, upon 
transmission to the designated email address of said addressee. 

(b) PURCHASING ENTITY INFORMATION.  Purchasing Entity hereby designates the following contract
administrator as the single point of contact for business activities under this Agreement.

Purchasing Entity Information 

Organization Name 
San Miguel Authority for Regional 
Transportation 

Tax Identification Number 81-4551852

State Business Identification Number 
(Required for Non-Profit entities) 

98064016 (Tax Exempt Certification #) 

Contact Name for Contract Administrator David Averill 

Title Executive Director 

Address PO Box 3140 

City, State, Zip Telluride, CO 81435 

Phone Number 970-988-1219

Email Address david.averill@smarttelluride.com 

7. COMMUNICATION.  In the event Purchasing Entity becomes aware of a significant contract performance
issue pertaining to the Master Contract that, in Purchasing Entity’s reasonable judgment, could
adversely impact the State of Washington, Purchasing Entity shall communicate the same to
Enterprise Services.

26

mailto:david.averill@smarttelluride.com


WASHINGTON STATE TRANSIT BUSES COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT PAGE 4 
(Rev 2021-10-01) 

8. CONTRACTOR DISPUTES.  Purchasing Entity is responsible for resolving any disputes between itself and
the applicable Master Contract Contractor regarding its purchases.  Purchasing Entity shall notify
Enterprise Services of any material dispute between Purchasing Entity and the applicable Master
Contract Contractor.  When appropriate, Enterprise Services may assist Purchasing Entity in resolving
such disputes.

9. NO LIABILITY.  Other than those obligations expressly set forth in this Agreement, including the right of
the State of Washington to the Vendor Management Fee, the parties shall have no liability whatsoever
to each other with regard to transactions arising out of this Agreement or the Master Contract.

10. TAXES/FEES.  Unless otherwise agreed with Contractor, Purchasing Entity shall pay applicable sales and
use taxes imposed by the tax jurisdictions in which purchase delivery occurs.  Contractor agrees not
make any charge for federal excise taxes and Purchasing Entity shall furnish Contractor with an
exemption certificate where appropriate.

11. SCOPE OF PARTICIPATION.  Purchasing Entity shall provide Enterprise Services with Purchasing Entity’s
estimates for purchases under the Master Contract.  Purchasing Entity shall provide timely updates
regarding such estimated purchases if there is a material change in such planned purchases.  The
purchasing estimates are for Enterprise Services’ planning purposes in managing and approving
purchases on the Master Contract.

Category Estimated Purchases 

Heavy Duty Five (5) 

Light/Medium Duty 

Double Decker 

Rebuilt 

Refurbish 

Repower 

12. APPROVAL PROCESS.  Purchasing Entity shall submit purchase information to Enterprise Services for
approval of purchases under the Master Contract.  Purchasing Entity shall provide necessary purchase
information for each purchase including but not limited to, the final purchase order, the use of FTA
funding, FTA grant number, and applicable Department of Transportation contact for approval.
Enterprise Services shall include the respective state Department of Transportation for purchasing
using FTA funds which require state DOT approval.

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS

(a) ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of
the parties with respect to the subject matter and supersedes all prior negotiations and
representations.  There are no representations or understandings of any kind not set forth
herein.

(b) AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION.  Except as set forth herein, this Agreement may not be amended
or modified except in writing signed by  a duly authorized representative of each party.

27



WASHINGTON STATE TRANSIT BUSES COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT PAGE 5 
(Rev 2021-10-01) 

(c) AUTHORITY.  Each party to this Agreement, and each individual signing on behalf of each party,
hereby represents and warrants to the other that it has full power and authority to enter into
this Agreement and that its execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement has been
fully authorized and approved, and that no further approvals or consents are required to bind
such party.

(d) ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES.  An electronic signature or electronic record of this Agreement or any
other ancillary agreement shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an
original executed copy of this Agreement or such other ancillary agreement for all purposes.

(e) COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original, and all of which counterparts together shall constitute the same
instrument which may be sufficiently evidenced by one counterpart.  Execution of this
Agreement at different times and places by the parties shall not affect the validity thereof so
long as all the parties hereto execute a counterpart of this Agreement.

EXECUTED as of the date and year first above written. 

TRANSIT BUSES COOPERATIVE 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES 

By: _____________________________ 

Name:  

Title: _____________________________ 

AUTHORIZED PURCHASING ENTITY 

SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION 

By: _____________________________ 

Name: ____Joe Dillsworth_________ 

Title: ____Board Chair_____________ 

Return this Agreement to Enterprise Services at: 
buspurchases@des.wa.gov  

28

Click here to return to Agenda



Operations Manager’s Report, 2023
January 5th, 2023

• Update on Real-Time Passenger Information App

We signed an agreement with Swiftly to conduct a 
two month pilot program that passengers could use 
to see their buses in real time.  Swiftly Transitime
interfaces with the Samsara GPS program installed on 
our buses to enable the TEX dispatch team to track 
the buses.  So far, the app appears to be working.  We 
can follow the buses on Swiftly and compare with 
their progress on Samsara.  I have also begun to test 
the performance report module of the program.  
Again, it seems to work well.  I will be testing the 
performance reporting module against the 
performance reporting I do currently with Samsara 
and QGIS.  

We met with the Swiftly staff on the Friday before the 
Board meeting to become familiar with the program 
and to get answers to a series of questions that I had 
prepared.  

Unlike the last app we tried, Swiftly does not require 
that drivers make use of tablets.  This is helpful 
because it avoids program failures when the driver 
forgets to log in.  

The Swiftly app interfaces with Transit, Google Maps 
and Moovit, all of which are available for free on 
phone or computer App stores.  Downloading any of 
these apps will allow passengers to track their buses 
on their phones once Swiftly goes live for passenger 
testing.    

When have worked out any kinks and the app goes 
live, we will be asking various transit users to 
download the Transit app and try Swiftly out.   

• Update on Senior & Disabled Transit Service
Roadmap

Fehr and Peers have incorporated comments from 
SMART staff into their final draft of the Senior & 
Disabled Transit Service Roadmap.  They are currently 
in the process of communicating with Sarah Curtis of 
All Points Transit and incorporating her comments.  
They will also reach out to Tri County Health Network.

Fehr and Peers staff will be presenting the final 
Roadmap to the Board in February. 

1

• Bus Capacity

Last month, one of our drivers mentioned that the 
Norwood bus had become quite crowded. I took this 
opportunity to examine bus capacity over the course 
of 2022. This is something that we need to track 
should the buses become so crowded that we need to 
add an additional bus. 

Understanding the average passenger counts as well 
as peak ridership days will not only ensure that we add 
buses if need be, but also allow us to evaluate the size 
of vehicles being used to ensure efficiency of 
operations. 

While there were a couple of days last year that were 
crowded, on average, there were a not an excessive  
number of passengers on any route.  SMART has 
Vehicle Load Standards taken from the Title VI plan.  
Vehicle Load Standards do allow for standing 
passengers, however we would prefer that no 
passenger stand on the longer trips.

The following is SMART’s policy with respect to 
standing on buses:

40’ Transit bus - 11 Standing Passengers
30’ Transit bus - 8 Standing Passengers
25’ Transit bus - 7 Standing Passengers

No passengers are allowed to stand or share seats in 
our vans.  

As you can see from the following graphs, average 
monthly capacity on any route is not yet approaching 
a level that suggests we should add a buses.  The 
graphs also show peak days and days where ridership 
has exceeded bus capacity.  These are numbers that 
we will also keep an eye on going forward. 

It is worth noting that SMART carries a lot of students 
to and from the Telluride Middle School/High School 
district to Telluride.  Students from Norwood and 
Rico are out of district students.  Graphs toward the 
end of this report show percentages of students 
traveling to school on SMART buses.

29



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

2

20.2 20.6 20.3

14.2

17.2 17.8

20.7
21.7

19.3 18.3
17.0

19.5

31
29 29

20

27 28
30

26
24 23

30

26

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Nucla AM M-F - Average Ridership & Peak Day Ridership 

Average monthly capacity in 2022 ranged between 
35.4% and 51.7%

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the Nucla AM 
bus reached was 77.5%

The bus used for the Nucla Route is typically a 40 passenger vehicle.  The green line illustrates the average monthly 
ridership and the orange line shows the highest number of riders that month.  Peak days on the Nucla Route AM were 
in July and August, with 30 riders.  

30



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

3

Average monthly capacity on the evening Nucla bus 
in 2022 ranged between 45.4% and 62.6%. This is our 
most crowded evening bus.  

In 2022, the peak capacity that the Nucla PM bus 
reached was 127.5%.  

21.72
24.90 25.0

18.2
20.4 19.3

21.9 23.3 22.1 23.7
21.8 21.2

30
32 31

24 25

41

51

40

29

24

29
27

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Nucla PM M-F - Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership  

The Nucla Route, with a 5:00 PM departure from Telluride had three months, June, July and August, that ridership 
exceeded capacity.  There is a later bus that leaves Town Park at 5:15 PM which, an option for Norwood passengers 
should this bus become too crowded.  

31



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

4

Average monthly capacity in 2022 on the morning 
Norwood bus in 2022 ranged between 31.2% and 
74.1%

In 2022, peak capacity that the Norwood morning bus 
reached was 117.5%

23.4 23.9
26.2

19.4
21.8

14.3
12.5

17.7

22.8
25.8

19.0

29.630 30

35

31 31

20

16

37
40

33 32

47

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Norwood AM M-F Average Percent of Bus Capacity

The Norwood AM weekday bus is typically a 40 passenger vehicle.  This is our most crowded AM bus, since it 
transports not only commuters, but also students.  In December, there was a day that ridership exceeded capacity. 

32



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

5

Average monthly capacity on the evening Norwood 
bus in 2022 ranged between 22.0% and 66.7%  This 
bus is less popular than the Nucla bus due to the later 
departure time.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity on Norwood PM 
bus was 125.0%

14.6 14.3
17.5

8.8
10.6 12.3

9.7
13.9

16.2

22.0

14.6

26.7

19
17

20
17 17

28

14

22
25

33
29

50

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Norwood PM M-F Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

Ridership on the Norwood bus increased in December.  This is likely due to the weather, and I believe we can expect 
increases in January.

33



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

6

Average monthly capacity on the west bound  
Norwood midday bus ranged between 2.7% and 
10.9%.

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the west 
bound Norwood midday bus reached was 57.1%

The Norwood Midday Route began in late May.  Typically, we use a 14 passenger bus for this route.  The west bound 
route is essentially a deadhead route that gets the bus to Norwood to pick up passengers that start work or need to 
go to Telluride later in the day.  As this graph illustrates, ridership is low.  This route include stops at Two Rivers.

0.0

0.8
1.5

0.8
1.2

0.7
0.4 0.7

0

5

8

3

6 6

3 3

MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Norwood Midday West Bound M-F Average Ridership & Highest Day 
Ridership 

34



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

7

Average monthly capacity on the east bound  
Norwood midday bus ranged between 10.7% and 
49.6%.

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the Norwood 
midday east bound bus reached was 100%

The east bound route leaves Norwood at 11:00 AM.  Ridership declined from September to November, but seems to 
be picking back up.

1.5

3.9

6.0
7.0

4.9 4.6
4.0

5.6

3

8

14
13

12

10

8

13

MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Norwood Midday East Bound M-F Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

35



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

8

Average monthly capacity on the 11:30 PM Norwood 
bus ranged between 8.8% and 30.4%.

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the Norwood 
late bus reached was 107.1%

The 11:30 PM route from Norwood to Telluride also began in late May in an effort to accommodate restaurant 
workers.  We typically use a 14 passenger bus for this route.  Ridership has remained small but steady.  We hope to see 
an upward trend as the year progresses.  There was a spike in June, likely as a result of the Bluegrass Festival.  This 
route also includes stops at Two Rivers.

0.1

3.5

1.5

4.3

2.8
1.9

1.2

3.0

1

15

9

12

5
6

4

8

MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Norwood Late M-F Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

36



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

9

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the 
weekend Norwood AM bus ranged between 17.5% 
and 52.8%.

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the Norwood 
AM bus reached was 107.1%

SMART runs only one bus to Telluride from Norwood and back on weekends.  We use a 40 passenger bus.  The Nucla 
bus does not run.  This route has saw a decline in average ridership over the course on the year.  

21.1

17.3 17.6

10.7

13.9

17.6 16.8 17.7

12.3
10.1 9.4

7.0

32

22 21

18

30

26
28

24

18

15
13

28

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Norwood AM S-S Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

37



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

10

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the 
weekend Norwood PM bus ranged between 20.3% 
and 48.8%.

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the Norwood 
PM bus reached was 65.0%

Average ridership on this bus is also declined over the course on 2022. 

18.6
19.5

17.0

10.2
11.7

15.8 15.9 15.8

12.1
13.5

11.3

8.1

25 25

21
19

15

26
24

19
20

25

14

21

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Norwood PM S-S Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

38



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

11

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the first 
east bound Down Valley bus ranged between 4.0% 
and 29.4%.  If vehicle inventory allows, we will be 
looking at using a smaller bus for this route.

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the first 
Down Valley morning bus reached was 64.0%

The morning Down Valley Route begins in Placerville at 7:05.  The Placerville Routes are week day only routes.  We 
typically use a 25 passenger bus for this route.  All Down Valley Route include a stop at Two Rivers.

4.7
4.0

1.0
2.0

4.8 4.5 4.2 4.3

6.8
5.7

7.3

9

7

3

5

9 9 9

7

12
13

16

FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Down Valley AM M-F East Bound Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

39



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

12

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the west 
bound Down Valley bus ranged between 0.2% and 
5.7%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the west 
bound Down Valley morning bus reached was 24.0%

The morning west bound Down Valley Route leaves Telluride at 7:50 AM.  This bus is also essentially a deadhead run 
to provide a later bus for folks coming to Telluride from Placerville.  It does get some riders.

0.1 0.1

0.7

0.1
0.3

1.3
0.9 1.0 0.8

1.2
1.4

1.01 1

6

1

2

4 4

3

2

6

3

4

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Down Valley AM M-F West Bound Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

40



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

13

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the second 
east bound Down Valley bus ranged between 6.2% 
and 12.4%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the second 
east bound AM Down Valley morning bus reached 
was 56.0%

The later morning east bound Down Valley Route leaves Telluride at 8:30 AM.  Ridership is not high, but it is 
consistent.  

1.8
3.1

2.5
1.7 1.7

3.0
2.2 2.6

1.6 1.5
2.2

3.0

6

8

6

4 4

14

4

9

4
3

4

6

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Down Valley AM M-F East Bound 2 Average Ridership & Highest Day 
Ridership 

41



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

14

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the second 
east bound Down Valley bus ranged between 1.7% and 
8.6%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the midday 
west bound Down Valley morning bus reached was 
36.0%

The midday west bound Down Valley Route leaves Telluride at 11:30 AM.  It makes a stop at Upper Lawson Hill.  This 
bus is typically a 25 passenger bus.  We are expecting a new, smaller bus and that will enable us to operate this route 
more efficiently.  We see a spike in June due to the Bluegrass Festival.    

1.1
1.8 1.8

1.0 1.0

2.1

1.3 1.5
0.7 0.4

0.9 1.1

3

5 5 5

3

9

5

4

2 2

3

7

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Down Valley Midday West Bound M-F Average Ridership & Highest Day 
Ridership 

42



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

15

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the second 
east bound Down Valley bus ranged between 5.6% 
and 24.4%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the midday 
east bound Down Valley morning bus reached was 
88.0%

The midday east bound Down Valley Route leaves Placerville at 12:15 PM.  It makes a stop at Upper Lawson Hill.  This 
route helps to fill in the gap that occurs in the Lawson Route between 11:20 AM and 2:25 PM.

2.5 3.2 3.6

1.4 2.0

6.6

4.4
5.5

2.7
1.6 1.2

4.9

10
8 8

9
7

22

11

15

9

5
6

13

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Down Valley Midday East Bound M-F Average Ridership & Highest Day 
Ridership 

43



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

16

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the first 
evening west bound Down Valley bus ranged between 
9.1% and 46.2%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the first west 
bound Down Valley morning bus reached was 121%

The evening west bound Down Valley Route leaves Telluride at 5:10 PM. This bus is typically a 14 passenger bus.  Like 
the other Down Valley buses, this route runs on weekdays only.    

3.6
4.7

4.0

1.7 2.2
1.3 1.3

3.5

5.8 6.1 5.5
6.5

9

12
13

4

6

4
5

9
10

13

16
17

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Down Valley PM M-F West Bound Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

44



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

17

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the  
evening east bound Down Valley bus ranged between 
1.1% and 9.4%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the evening 
east bound Down Valley bus reached was 42.9%

The evening east bound Down Valley Route leaves Placerville at 5:50 PM. This bus is typically a 14 passenger bus. 

0.3 0.2
0.5

0.2 0.3

1.3

0.7
1.2

0.8 0.8
0.5 0.3

2 2

4

1 1

3

5

4 4

6

2 2

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Down Valley PM M-F East Bound Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

45



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

18

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the  second 
evening west bound Down Valley bus ranged between 
4.9% and 34.7%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the second 
evening west bound Down Valley bus reached was 
100%

The second west bound Down Valley Route leaves Telluride at 6:30 PM. 

1.5

3.1
2.4

0.7 0.9
1.5

2.4

4.0 4.1
4.9

2.5 2.7
4

7
6

4
3

6

8

14

9

13

9

11

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Down Valley PM M-F West 2 Bound Average Ridership & Highest Day 
Ridership 

46



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

19

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the Rico 
AM bus ranged between 12.4% and 47.3%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the Rico AM 
reached was 85.7%

The Rico bus goes to Telluride from Rico and back to Rico twice a day of weekdays.  This bus is typically a 14 
passenger bus. 

5.4

3.5
2.7 2.3

3.8

2.1 1.7

3.9

6.6 6.6

3.7 3.6

6
5

7
6

7
8

6

12

10
11

8 8

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Rico AM M-F  Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

47



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

20

In 2022, the average monthly capacity on the Rico 
PM bus ranged between 6.8% and 24.5%.  

In 2022, the peak percent capacity that the Rico PM 
reached was 71.4%

The evening Rico bus leaves Telluride at 5:15 PM.

3.1

2.0 2.1

1.0

2.4 2.1 1.9
2.6 2.9

3.4

2.1
1.6

6 6

4 4

6

10

7

6 6

7

6

8

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Rico PM M-F  Average Ridership & Highest Day Ridership 

48



Operations Manager’s Report, January 
2023
January 5th, 2023

21

9.
2%

12
.8

%

19
.9

%

10
.0

%

10
.0

%

29
.3

%

30
.5

%

21
.4

%

11
.2

%

DOWN VALLEY ROUTE STUDENT 
RIDERSHIP

42
.8

%

41
.6

%

40
.3

%

39
.0

% 49
.0

%

60
.0

%

56
.4

%

43
.9

%

32
.8

%

NORWOOD ROUTE STUDENT RIDERSHIP

71
.1

% 79
.7

%

83
.7

%

94
.1

%

88
.1

%

64
.1

%

79
.1

%

37
.0

%

59
.8

%

RICO ROUTE STUDENT RIDERSHIP

In 2022, the Norwood student ridership 
ranged between 32.8% and 60.0%.

In 2022, the Down Valley student 
ridership ranged between 9.2% and 
30.5%.

In 2022, the Rico student ridership 
ranged between 37.0% and 94.1%.

49

Click here to return to Agenda



SMART Executive Director report – January 12th, 2023 

Grants: We spent down and closed out our remaining CRRSSAA and FY22 5311 awards. We 
will start spending down our FY235311 award with January expenses. 

Audit RFP: RFP for outside audit services is “on the street” with a due date of 1/20/23. The RFP 

was sent directly to 10 different firms. A few questions have come in so far from potential 

proposers, which is a good sign that there is interest in the work. 

Gondola Subcommittee/rebuild project – resolution of intent: I will be bringing a resolution of 

intent forward for the Boards consideration at the February meeting. This resolution will be 

designed to formalize what SMART is agreeing to vis a vis the gondola project. Items you can 

expect to see in the resolution include agreement to be the project sponsor for grant-making 

purposes, agreement to pursue long-term financing for the ongoing operations/maintenance of 

the asset post the current funding agreement, etc. There will also be a recommendation to put 

together a much more detailed IGA between all of the project partners that articulates 

roles/responsibilities moving forward. 

Property tax/RTA statute: In a recent meeting with bond counsel it was pointed out that there is 

some potentially problematic language in the existing statute that governs IGA’s regarding a 

sunset on the ability of RTA’s to impose mill levy’s. I am working with CASTA, the CASTA 

lobbyist, and representatives from RFTA to come up with a proposed legislative fix to this to be 

considered in this legislative session. It is likely that we will also propose to raise the statutory 

sales tax limit of 1% that RTA’s can collect to 1.5%. I will keep the Board informed as to how 

this develops. 

Rolling stock update: Large bus order – still waiting on final pricing from the vendor, but we are 

getting close to placing the order. Vehicle transfer from Continuum of Colorado: we are waiting 

for the title work to be processed on CDOTs end but will likely take ownership of this vehicle by 

the end of January. 

50

Click here to return to Agenda


	10 Ops Manager Report Jan 2023.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21




